
1 
 

Summary Minutes 
 

Emergency Medical Services Regulatory Board 
Executive Committee Meetings 

 Wednesday, April 21, 2010, 8:30 a.m. 
2829 University Avenue SE 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
 

Members Present Guests Staff Present 
James Rieber (by phone) 
Paula Fink-Kocken, M.D. (by phone) 
Pat Lee (by phone) 
Kevin Miller  
Gary Pearson (by phone) 
 

None identified Katherine Burke Moore 
Melody Nagy  
 

I. Call to Order 
Mr. Rieber called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. 
 

II. Introductions 
Mr. Rieber asked members to introduce themselves. 
 

III. Approval of Agenda 
Mr. Rieber asked to add two items to the agenda. He asked if there has been a meeting 
with Mr. Ross. He asked to discuss the staff position that is open. Mr. Miller asked about 
the Senate confirmation process. 
 
Mr. Lee moved approval of the agenda as revised. Mr. Miller seconded. Roll call vote: 
Dr. Fink Kocken, Mr. Lee, Mr. Miller, Mr. Pearson, Mr. Rieber voted yes, motion 
carried. 

 
IV. Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Rieber asked that the minutes be tabled until next week. 
 
V. Legislative Issues 

Mr. Miller said that we are monitoring activities, but there is nothing new to report. We 
are waiting for the final budget. 

 
VI. Finance Committee Review (Grant and Contract Reductions) 

Mr. Pearson said that the Finance Committee met yesterday and discussed the process for 
budget cuts. He said that the Committee reviewed the spreadsheet of cuts as allocated by 
the Executive Committee. Ms. Burke Moore provided information on the 3% and 6% 
cuts. The Committee discussed withholding payments to two regions and it was decided 
that payment would be made immediately. Ms. Burke Moore agreed to process the 
invoices. Mr. Pearson said that the Committee made suggestions for a format for 
reporting and we would like line item budget documents to share with the Board. Mr. 
Pearson said that he would be meeting with Ms. Burke Moore to look at different budget 
documents that might be useful. 
 
Mr. Pearson said that we are looking for a proposal from the Executive Director 
regarding cuts so the Board can take action. Mr. Rieber said that the regional programs 
were supposed to receive a letter informing them of the cuts, I don’t know that any action 



2 
 

was authorized. This was a change in contract and should have been discussed by the 
Finance Committee before any action is taken. 
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that she also receives instruction from MMB that must be 
followed. Mr. Rieber said that this information needs to come back to the Board for 
action. If there is an alteration of the daily business of the Board; the Board needs to be 
informed ahead of time. Mr. Rieber suggested that the Board needs to receive an AG 
opinion on this.  
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that the instruction was to hold the funds. She said that she has 
received somewhat differing directions on how to handle the reductions of contracts from 
the AG and the requirements of MMB. We must still deal work with both entities to 
appropriately address the reductions that need to be taken. 
 
Mr. Rieber said that the Finance Committee needs to discuss these issues before any 
actions are taken because the Board is responsible. We do not have to take the direction 
of MMB; the Board will determine the course of action taken.  
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that we still need to discuss how the reductions will be 
implemented. This is not final yet but we need to be prepared how we will address the 
cuts. Ms. Burke Moore said that emails were sent to the regional program and CALS 
informing them of the potential reductions. She said that the reduction is expected to be 
6% from all grants and contracts. The regions are spending down their general fund 
money and there must be money for the reductions. 
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that an option for the regional programs is to cover the general 
fund reductions with seat belt funds. Mr. Rieber said that we have not notified the 
regional programs of the reduction. Ms. Burke Moore said that an email went out in early 
April. Mr. Rieber said that the contract must be modified. Ms. Burke Moore said that she 
has been advised not to modify the contract until the end of session and final budgets are 
clear. Mr. Rieber said that he has sought an AG opinion. The contracts must be modified 
before this reduction is made or we have no legal ground to make them pay us back. 
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that the process requires the agency to reduce grants and contracts 
using a 6% reduction formula. Mr. Rieber said that the contracts have to be rewritten to 
reduce these funds. Ms. Burke Moore said that we need to amend the contracts. However, 
we need to realize that the seat belt funds have increased greatly in the same time period. 
There are also reductions from the seat belt funding. When the seat belt amount was 
calculated we estimated on the low side; thinking that with a primary law tickets would 
decline. The amount of seat belt funds collected has increased greatly over this 
projection. The 2010 projection is that the regional programs will receive about $250,000 
in seat belt funds; higher than they have received in any of the past four years.   
 
Mr. Rieber said that until you notify the regional programs of the proposed reduction and 
reduce the contract and unless you provide proper notification we cannot recoup these 
funds. Ms. Burke Moore asked if the committee is expecting the reduction money would 
then come out the EMS operations account. Mr. Rieber said that no action can be taken 
until we rewrite the contract.  
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that she that the contract language allows for it to be reduced or 
cancelled. Mr. Miller said that you have very few actions that you can take. We need to 



3 
 

protect the Board. Ms. Burke Moore said that we can begin the process of amendments 
today, but we do not know the final decision of the Legislature. Mr. Rieber said that the 
invoices already received must be paid.  
 
Mr. Rieber said that the regional programs must reduce expenditures and adjust their 
contract. That is the only way we can recoup the funds. Ms. Burke Moore said that we 
could ask the regional programs to recoup the funds by using seat belt funds. Mr. Miller 
said that is up to the regional programs on how they recoup the money.  
 
Mr. Rieber said that the 6% reduction would be off the lower amount – they have already 
spent the money and the Board did not give them prior notice to modify the contracts. 
Ms. Burke Moore said that she would discuss this with MMB; but the formulas were run 
in January not on today’s funds. The amount calculated early this year is the amount 
MMB is anticipating the reduction would be. Mr. Lee said that there would be a 6% 
decrease on what is leftover today not the amount previously noted.  
 
Mr. Rieber said that the state is in breach of the contract. A contract cannot be modified 
without proper notice. MMB is a department of the state; the Board has final authority to 
take action. Ms. Burke Moore said that they are the budget authority in the state. Ms. 
Burke Moore said that she would like to see these different views to come together.  
 
Mr. Rieber instructed Ms. Burke Moore to modify the contracts on what is left (the 
unencumbered amount). Ms. Burke Moore said that the 6% is from January when she 
was given direction to take these reductions. This is uncharted waters. She commented 
that she has been advised to do not take action until the legislature adjourns, but we can 
start amendments. Second amendments may need to be done.  
  
Mr. Rieber said that all agencies must reduce their contracts – that is quoted in the memo. 
You cannot go backward and penalize the regional program on funds that they have not 
been legally informed that were to be reduced unless MMB has language to breach the 
contract. Ms. Burke Moore said that there is contractual language regarding cancellation 
of grants Mr. Lee said that there must be 30 days written notice to cancel a contract and 
there would be prorated payment on the contract activities within those 30 days.  
 
Mr. Rieber said that paying back with seat belt funds can be an option but we cannot 
force them to do this. The regions would have to agree to this.  
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that the language is clear for amendments. This is a two year 
contract. Amendments must include this years’ reduction and next years’ reduction. Mr. 
Rieber said that these should be separate contract amendments. Ms. Burke Moore said 
there are two years in the current contract. Now if we would receive additional money 
(which is very unlikely); we would amend the contracts again to distribute additional 
funds.  
 
Mr. Miller asked if there is anything in the contract regarding an amendment and funds 
expended prior to the amendment. Mr. Lee said that an amendment must be in writing 
and does not go into effect until amendment is approved by all parties.  
 
Mr. Rieber suggested that the amendments must be sent out right away. He asked if there 
needs to be a special Board meeting to take action on this issue. Mr. Miller commented 
that we may have difficulty in obtaining a quorum for a special Board meeting. 



4 
 

Ms. Burke Moore said that the Board could not vote to not amend the contract. Mr. 
Rieber said that the funds are currently not available. Ms. Burke Moore said that is how 
she interprets the MMBs directive. Mr. Rieber said that the governor has not taken this 
action. 
 
Mr. Miller said that if the email is a directive that is when we should have amended the 
grant. Ms. Burke Moore said that she understands that approach, but had also been 
advised not to take action until we know the final amount of any reduction. Ms. Burke 
Moore said in hindsight; we should have taken action in February; yet no one knew 
where the legislature would go with these reductions.  Ms. Burke Moore said that 
although we focus our discussion on the impact to the regional programs, these 
reductions affect every contract not just the regional programs. 

 
Mr. Miller asked about the MRCC money. Ms. Burke Moore said that when she was 
calculating the reductions she asked MMB what to do with the grant funding we get from 
the Department of Public Safety. The direction she received was to not reduce the MRCC 
grant funding. It was her understanding that since the Department of Public Safety did 
not experience any cuts; we would not cut the Public Safety funding in this grant.  

 
Mr. Rieber again repeated that the amendment would happen on the amount of 
unexpended funds from today. Mr. Lee said that this would happen when his board 
approves the amendment. Mr. Lee said that there will be additional invoices submitted 
before the amendments are approved. Two or three regions are at a zero balance. Mr. 
Rieber repeated that we need an AG opinion on this legal issue. He asked if the email is 
an official notice – that will determine the date. Ms. Burke Moore said that she would 
like to see the relationship with the regions and other grantees as partnership not 
adversarial. Mr. Rieber said that the AG must defend the Board on this action. 

 
VII. Open Staff Position 

Mr. Rieber said that since we do not know where the budget is he feels that we should not 
fill the open position right away. Ms. Burke Moore said that she had already mentioned 
that approach to Mr. Rieber and has discussed with Mr. Norlen how we will address that 
portion of the state.  We will keep the position on our roster but not consider filling it 
until the state budget improves in future fiscal years. That decision had already been 
made. Mr. Miller said that this needs to be communicated to the Board. Ms. Burke Moore 
stated that she had told Mr. Rieber.  Mr. Rieber said that he has heard at the Governors 
office of budget reductions that would eliminate positions. Ms. Burke Moore stated that 
even though it is always difficult to lose a good employee, the resignation came at a good 
time. Without that resignation the agency’s only option was potentially a lay-off. That 
starts a ripple effect with severance costs and unemployment benefits. Ms. Burke stated 
the timing helps with the reduction. 
 
Mr. Rieber suggested that any positions that are vacant should be reviewed by the 
Finance Committee for consideration before hiring. 
 
Mr. Lee moved that hiring for positions must be reviewed by the Finance Committee. Mr. 
Pearson seconded. Roll call vote: Dr. Fink Kocken, Mr. Lee, Mr. Miller, Mr. Pearson, 
Mr. Rieber voted yes, motion carried. 
 
 
 



5 
 

VIII. Meeting regarding flood planning 
Mr. Rieber asked if Ms. Burke Moore if she has had time to meet with Mr. Ross. He said 
that Mr. Ross and Mr. Norlen have discussed this and I believe they have agreed on the 
chart. Ms. Burke Moore said that she will set up a meeting in with Mr. Ross in early May 
after she returns to the office. 
 

IX. Discussion of Senate Confirmation 
Mr. Miller asked if this can be discussed in closed session. Mr. Miller asked that this be 
tabled and discussed in closed session before the next Board meeting. 

 
X. Next Meeting Date 

May 5, 8:30 a.m. (telephone conference meeting) 
 
Dr. Fink Kocken said that she will not be able to attend that day.  
 
Ms. Burke Moore said that she is trying to move meetings to a later time so hotel 
expenses are not incurred. We need to continue to reduce EMSRB costs. Mr. Rieber said 
that is fine except for occasions when the Executive Committee meets before Board 
meetings. 
 

XI. Adjourn 
Mr. Miller moved to adjourn. Dr. Fink Kocken seconded. Roll call vote: Dr. Fink 
Kocken, Mr. Lee, Mr. Miller, Mr. Pearson, Mr. Rieber voted yes, motion carried. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


